JIRCAS International Symposium 2024

# Resilient Genetic Resources for Food Security in the Era of Global Boiling

# Proceedings

Date November 22, 2024

Venue U Thant International Conference Hall United Nations University Tokyo, Japan





Organized by : Japan International Research Center for Agricultural Sciences (JIRCAS) In cooperation with : Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries (MAFF), National Agriculture and Food Research Organization (NARO)

Published December 2024 by the Japan International Research Center for Agricultural Sciences 1-1 Ohwashi, Tsukuba, Ibaraki 305-8686 Japan

©2024 Japan International Research Center for Agricultural Sciences

## CONTENTS

## Opening

## **Opening Remarks:**

#### KOYAMA Osamu

President, JIRCAS

### Welcome Remarks:

#### **SAKAIDA Teruya**

Director-General, Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries Research Council Secretariat, Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries (MAFF)

## Keynote Speeches

## Historical Perspectives on the Role of Crop Diversity in Achieving Food and Nutrition Security

#### Sarada Krishnan

Director of Programs, Global Crop Diversity Trust, Bonn, Germany

## Adapting Food Systems to a Changing Climate

#### **Toshihiro Hasegawa**

Executive Scientist, Institute for Agro-Environmental Sciences, National Agriculture and Food Research Organization (NARO), Japan

## Session 1

### Potentials of Genetic Resource Diversity for Resilient and Nutritious Food Systems

Chairperson: Miyuki Iiyama, Program Director/Information, JIRCAS

## Potential of Quinoa for Food and Nutritious Security Under Climate Change in the Era of Global Boiling

#### Yukari Nagatoshi

Project Leader, Biological Resources and Post-harvest Division, JIRCAS, Japan

# Further Potential of Sago Palm and Sago Starch in Shaping the Future of the Asia-Pacific Region

### Hiroshi Ehara

Professor, Graduate School of Bioagricultural Sciences, Nagoya University, Japan

## Discovery of Genes for Stress Resistance in Mungbean (Vigna radiata)

#### Prakit Somta

Associate Professor, Department of Agronomy, Faculty of Agriculture at Kamphaeng Saen, Kasetsart University, Nakhon Pathom, Thailand

## Session 2

## **Opportunities of Utilizing Genetic Resources to Build Resilient Food Systems**

Chairperson: Keiichi Hayashi, Program Director/ Environment, JIRCAS

## IRRI's Strategies to Utilize Genetic Resources for Breeding Resilient Rice

#### Venuprasad Ramaiah

Research Unit Leader, International Rice Research Institute (IRRI), Philippines

## Diving into Genetic Diversity in Wild Wheats: A Case Study on Aegilops tauschii Coss

### Yoshihiro Matsuoka

Professor, Graduate School of Agricultural Science, Kobe University, Japan

# Advancement of Tropical Crop Genetic Resources Utilization through the Development of Database, Technologies and Research Networking

### Shinsuke Yamanaka

Director of Tropical Agriculture Research Front (TARF) and Project Leader, JIRCAS, Japan

## **Panel Discussion**

### Panel Chair:

Yasunari Fujita Program Director/Food, JIRCAS

## Closing

Closing Remarks: YANAGIHARA Seiji Vice-President, JIRCAS



## **Opening Remarks**

## **KOYAMA Osamu**

President, JIRCAS



Good afternoon, everyone. I would like to express my sincere gratitude to SAKAIDA Teruya, Director-General of the Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries Research Council Secretariat, Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries (MAFF), the two distinguished keynote speakers, Dr. Sarada Krishnan of Crop Trust and Dr. HASEGAWA Toshihiro of the National Agriculture and Food Research Organization (NARO), as well as the speakers for the two sessions, for their cooperation in the JIRCAS International Symposium 2024. I would also like to thank all of the participants who have joined us, both in person and online, for taking the time out of your busy schedules.

In July 2023, UN Secretary-General said that we are now entering the era of global boiling. And recently, the media has reported that 2024 could almost certainly be the hottest year on record, and the first year that average temperatures rise to 1.5°C above the pre-industrial period.

Indeed, we have witnessed extreme weather events such as droughts and heavy rains affecting agricultural productivity. Countries in the Global South are facing protracted food security crises due to climate change. Also, as we recall, in Japan, the quality of rice declined last year due to heat stress.

Amid concerns that climate change will adversely affect crop productivity and grain quality, the need to develop crops that are resilient to the negative impacts of climate change is greater than ever to maintain global food and nutrition security. To this end, it is essential to conserve the diversity of crop genetic resources with resilient traits, such as those exhibiting stress tolerance to droughts, floods, poor environments, pests, and diseases, as well as traits that enable efficient use of water and external inputs.

JIRCAS has been working diligently to develop the technologies necessary to produce resilient crops, and to strengthen cooperation in the sharing of information on genetic resources and technologies to promote the sustainable production of tropical crops. In addition, this symposium brings together experts on various genetic resources to consider the diversity and potential of genetic resources, as well as the opportunities and challenges for institutional development to utilize diversity, in order to build resilient and nutritious food systems in the era of global boiling.

I sincerely hope that this International Symposium will serve as a platform for useful information exchange and lively discussions. Thank you very much.

-----

農林水産省技術会議事務局堺田輝也局長、基調講演者である Crop Trust サラダクリシュナン博士・ 農研機構長谷川利拡様、また、セッションにご登壇いただく講演者の皆様、本日は JIRCAS 国際シン ポジウム 2024 へのご協力を賜り、厚く御礼を申し上げます。そして会場またはオンラインでご出 席の皆様、貴重なお時間を割いて本日のシンポジウムにご参加くださり、心より御礼申し上げます。 2023年7月、国連事務総長は、地球温暖化 (global warming) の時代はおわり、地球沸騰化 (global boiling) 時代の到来の兆候であると表現しました。そして先日の報道によると、2024年はほぼ確実に史上最高に暑い年であり、産業革命期と比較して気温上昇が 1.5℃を超える最初の年になることが確実視されています。

実際に、私たちは、干ばつ、集中豪雨などの異常気象が、農業の生産性に影響を与えているのを 目撃しています。グローバルサウス諸国は、干ばつや洪水により長引く食料安全保障の危機にさら されています。また、記憶に新しいように、昨年日本でも猛暑の影響でコメの品質低下が起こりま した。

気候変動が作物の生産性と品質に悪影響を及ぼすことが懸念される中、世界の食料と栄養の安全 保障を維持する上で、レジリエントな作物開発の必要性がこれまで以上に高まっています。そのた めには、気温変動・干ばつや洪水・不良環境・病害虫などのストレス耐性、同時に、効率的な水・ 肥料利用を可能にする形質など、気候にスマートな作物遺伝資源の保全・利用が喫緊の課題です。

国際農研では、レジリエントな作物を作出または生産するために必要な技術の開発や、熱帯性作 物の持続的生産に向けた遺伝資源の情報整備と利用促進技術の開発の連携強化に取り組んできまし た。本シンポジウムは、作物遺伝資源に関する専門家をお招きし、地球沸騰化時代に強靭で栄養に 富んだ食料システム構築を実現するにあたり、遺伝資源の多様性と可能性、多様性を利用していく ための制度整備の機会と課題を考えます。

国際シンポジウムが有益な情報交換と活発な議論の場となりますことを祈念し、開催のあいさつ に代えさせていただきます。

## Welcome Remarks

## **SAKAIDA** Teruya

Director-General, Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries Research Council Secretariat, Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries (MAFF)

皆様、こんにちは。 ただいまご紹介を賜りました、農林水産省 農林水産技術会議事務局長の堺田 輝也でございます。

このたびは、「JIRCAS 国際シンポジウム 2024」が無事に開催されますことを、心よりお慶び申 し上げます。

さて、世界では、気候変動などの影響により、食料需要の増加、食料生産・供給の不安定化がま すます顕著になりつつあります。

今夏は、観測史上最も高い平均気温を記録するなど、日本各地で高温による農産物の生育不良や 病害虫の発生など、農業現場に大きな影響を及ぼしているところであります。

また、海外でも異常気象の発生により大きな被害がもたらされていると聞いております。

このように、我が国を含め世界的な課題である気候変動に対応した強じんで持続可能な農業生産を実現し、食料安全保障の確保を進めていくことは、非常に重要な課題であります。

このような中、日本においては、2021年5月に決定した「みどりの食料システム戦略」に基づき、2050年を目標年とした KPI を掲げ、調達、生産、流通、消費のフードチェーン全体で、生産力向上と持続性を両立する取組を進めております。

また、本年5月、食料・農業・農村基本法を四半世紀ぶりに改正し、「食料安全保障の強化」や「環 境と調和のとれた食料システムの確立」等を新たな柱に位置付け様々な施策を展開することとして います。

本日のシンポジウムでは、強靭な食料システムの構築に向けて、遺伝資源の多様性保全と活用、 国際的な連携強化について、当分野で大変活躍されておられる方をお招きしての講演ならびに議論 が行われる予定と伺っております。強じんで持続可能な農業生産の実現に向け、様々な視点から議 論を深められる大変良い機会になることを期待しております。

最後になりましたが、本日のこのシンポジウムが実りあるものとなりますとともに、ご出席の皆 様の益々のご活躍、ご健勝をお祈り申し上げ、私のあいさつを結ばせていただきます。本日はまこ とにおめでとうございます。



# **Keynote Speeches**

Historical Perspectives on the Role of Crop Diversity in Achieving Food and Nutrition Security

## Sarada Krishnan

Director of Programs, Global Crop Diversity Trust, Bonn, Germany



Dr. Sarada Krishnan is the Director of Programs at the Global Crop Diversity Trust based in Bonn, Germany. In this role, she supervises a team of scientists and project managers, overseeing the implementation of strategic projects and programs designed to support the organizational mandate of securing the world's crop diversity. She oversees the planning, development, and implementation of the overall programmatic technical framework of the organization. She currently serves on the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) National Genetic Resources Advisory Council and is the chair of USDA's Coffee and Cacao Crop Germplasm Committee. She also serves on Colorado State University (CSU) College of Agricultural Sciences' AgIndustry Leadership Council, on the advisory board of 4C Services and is faculty affiliate in the CSU Department of Horticulture and Landscape Architecture. Her broad interests include biodiversity conservation - both ex situ and in situ, conservation and sustainable use of plant genetic resources with a research focus on coffee genetic resources, food and nutrition security, and economic empowerment of women and girls.

# Abstracts

Diversity within and among domesticated species has been the cornerstone of agricultural development. Since the advent of agriculture, farmers around the world have served as custodians of this diversity, safeguarding it for future generations. Through thousands of years of cultivation, farmers have selected for plants that are adapted to local climatic conditions, which are called landraces. But the globalization of agriculture and plant breeding has led to the loss of genetic diversity in farmers' fields, causing genetic erosion. Conservation of plant diversity in genebanks safeguards it for use by current and future generations, both directly by farmers and as the raw materials for research and plant breeding. Genebanks therefore ultimately contribute to sustainable crop production systems, and hence food and nutrition security.

The most important person in the history of crop diversity conservation was Nikolai Vavilov. His work on the biogeography of crop plants provided a theoretical basis for the relationship between a crop's center of origin and the amount of genetic variation it displayed. He conducted numerous collecting trips around the world and identified main and secondary centers of diversity for numerous crops.

Another important historical figure in advancing the conservation of crop diversity was Otto H. Frankel. He developed the concepts of the genetic conservation of crop plants and was central to the efforts to organize genetic conservation from the 1960s onwards. He is credited with bringing together the International Biological Programme (IBP) and the United Nations Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) in the common cause of halting genetic erosion and conserving crop diversity by advocating for the establishment of a network of regional genebanks. This led to the formation of the Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research, which we now know as CGIAR, and the subsequent formation of the International Board for Plant Genetic Resources, which is now under CGIAR as the Alliance of Bioversity International and CIAT.

Hundreds of genebanks now conserve the diversity of many crops from all over the world, representing variation at the genetic level, both within and among crop populations. Conservation in genebanks means that landraces threatened with genetic erosion in farmers' fields can be preserved and made available to users. The international genebanks of CGIAR centers conserve the global diversity of some of the major global crops, whereas national genebanks focus on the agricultural heritage of their country, which includes crops more specifically important to the country's culture and its agricultural development. The ultimate security of seed collections is the safety back up in the permafrost at the Svalbard Global Seed Vault. The International Treaty on Plant Genetic Resources for Food and Agriculture (ITPGRFA) provides a policy framework for the world's genebanks. The Global Crop Diversity Trust is an essential element of the funding strategy of the ITPGRFA and is raising an endowment to support the essential operations of key genebanks around the world, starting with international collections.









To deal with these global challenges we need crop diversity









#### Loss of biodiversity is real

- In review of hundreds of scientific papers on genetic erosion almost 80% of studies found evidence of loss.
- At least 90% of vegetable varieties in the US have gone extinct since 1903.
- Of the more than 1,000 apple varieties that used to be grown in Europe, only six varieties are the source of apples grown commercially today.
- Countless other examples of such 'genetic erosion' are also reported from other crops.











### Important Milestones

1971 - CGIAR established

1974 - IBPGR established by the CGIAR (FAO administrative host)

1975 to 1995 - collection of >200,000 samples of landraces, CWRs and other materials in 136 countries 1991 - 1993 - Convention on Biological Diversity (CBD) negotiations and enters into force

1994 - "In-trust" agreement of CGIAR genebanks with FAO

2001 - Adoption of ITPGRFA

2004 - ITPGRFA enters into force (Multilateral System of Access and Benefit Sharing, Annex 1 crops - 64 majors crops and forages)

2004 - Crop Trust established by FAO and CGIAR to provide sustainable, long-term

funding for exsitu conservation

2010/2014 - Nagoya Protocol adopted/entered into force





#### What is a genebank?

Genebanks are repositories. where genetic materials are safely conserved and available for use

Some plants have seeds that cannot be dried and cooled for storage. These plants are often conserved as small plantlets, growing very slowly under specialized conditions in test tubes in an in wire genebank, or cryopreserved. Others, like fruit trees, can be conserved as adult living specimens in a field.



1.1









#### Safety duplication at Svalbard Global Seed Vault



- Opened in February 2008
- > 1.2 million seed samples from 80 countries
  - October 2024, more than 30,000 new seed samples deposited from 21 countries

Securing our food, foreve

## Future Actions for Food System Transformation

Nutritious and Underutilized Species (NUS) OR Opportunity Crops



The know	, the l	ore known and the little known	roma avamalar	CROP
INF KITCHI	1, 10m 1	Well researched and well utilized crops (much professional breeding)	Less researched and less well utilized orops (little professional broeding)	Little researched and underutilized crops (very limited professional breeding
Cereals	1	Wheat, rice, maize	Milets, quince, buckwheat	Teff, kanses, fonio
Legames	秜	Beans, chickpeas, soybeans	Cowpea, Lima bean	Bambara groundnut, lablat; kupins
Tubers	45	Potaco, sweetpotato, taro	Yams, jerusalem artichoke	Vam bean, arracacha
Fruits	$\odot$	Apple, watermelon, orange	Guava, breadfruit, litchi	Ackee, longan, carambola
Vegetables	10	Lettuce, comato, cobbage	Amaranthus, sorrel, okra	Spider plant, orache
Offeents	2	Sunflower, canola, pairs oil, coconut	Micadamia, saffower	Olicka chotaduro





#### **Research and breeding**

 Making the diversity of opportunity crops available for use by researchers, plant breeders and farmers, by characterizing the collections for specific traits related to climate change resilience and nutrition.

5

1

Integrating this diversity in breeding programs, including the development of public-private partnerships 3

#### Value chains and seed systems

 Identifying socio-economic obstacles that prevent large-scale adoption of opportunity crops in current food systems

1

- Supporting integrated seed system development
- Strengthening extension services for opportunity crops

#### **Policy support**

- Working with international policy from frameworks (first and foremost the Plant Treaty) and national governments on enabling environment of policies and regulations that are supportive of diverse food systems
- Raising awareness among broad stakeholder groups



→ A shift from intensive production of major staples to embracing a much wider diversity of crops, their products, and systems of cultivation is no small task.

→ Such an ambitious task is only possible with the support of a wide range of actors, including national governments, multilateral institutions, civil society organizations, the private sector, foundations, think tanks, farmers and others.

→ Genebanks can be at the forefront of this challenge, serving as engine and catalyst.

 $\rightarrow$  The Grop Trust is an important partner to help advance these ideas together with a wide range of actors.

Storing and Front Property



## Adapting Food Systems to a Changing Climate

## **Toshihiro Hasegawa**

Executive Scientist, Institute for Agro-Environmental Sciences, National Agriculture and Food Research Organization (NARO), Japan



Dr. Toshihiro Hasegawa is an executive researcher at the Institute for Agro-Environmental Sciences, National Agriculture and Food Research Organization (NARO), Tsukuba, Japan. After graduating from Kyoto University, he worked as an assistant professor at Kyushu Tokai University and an associate professor at Hokkaido University before joining NARO in 2016. He is a crop physiologist and specializes in environmental crop responses. He recently served as a Coordinating Lead Author of The Working Group II contribution to the IPCC Sixth Assessment Report.

# Abstracts

Climate change, including the increasing frequency and magnitude of climate extremes, has already negatively impacted food systems, undermining food security and nutrition. In 2022, the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) released the 6th Assessment Report (AR6) on climate change impacts, adaptation, and vulnerability to provide science-based and policy-relevant information. The report chapter comprehensively covers food, fibre, and other ecosystem service climate change impacts, projected risks, and adaptation solutions, leading to more resilient food systems<sup>[1]</sup>.

The assessment in the chapter highlights the significant impacts that human-induced climate change, including extreme weather events, is having on food systems. These impacts include reduced productivity, declining food quality, and changes in species distributions, increasing the risks of malnutrition and resource competition, especially for vulnerable populations. Since the mid-20th century, the growing frequency of extreme events has resulted in sudden losses in food production, decreased availability, and rising food prices, leading to acute food insecurity and worsened livelihoods in many regions. While autonomous adaptation measures have been adopted in agriculture and aquatic food production, they often remain incremental and limited to specific sectors.

Ecosystem-based approaches, such as diversification, land restoration, agroecology, and agroforestry, can enhance food production while offering multiple benefits, including improved yield stability and ecosystem health. Sustainable management of resources in response to shifts in species distribution—both terrestrial and aquatic—due to climate change is an effective adaptation measure to mitigate risks to food security and nutrition. Increasing global warming levels will constrain these options, putting food security at even greater risk in vulnerable areas.

Overall, substantial mitigation efforts are required to minimize the impacts on food systems and the ecosystems that support them. Food systems contribute around 30% of total human-caused emissions, and adaptation and mitigation actions that overlook ecosystem functions and equity could worsen the negative impacts of climate change, increasing vulnerability in certain regions and groups. In contrast, some adaptation strategies can enhance the sustainability of food production, reduce vulnerabilities, and improve ecosystem health in the context of climate change. Societal changes, such as shifts in dietary patterns, are also explored, as well as the risks of maladaptation and approaches to avoid it, with the goal of ensuring fair food distribution. This presentation summarizes key messages from the IPCC AR6 and discusses strategies for using genetic resources to enhance the resilience of food systems in the face of climate change.

[1] Bezner Kerr, R. et al. Food, Fibre, and Other Ecosystem Products, in: Pörtner, H.O. et al. (Eds.), Climate Change 2022: Impact, Adaptation, And Vulnerability. Contribution of Working Group II to the Sixth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change. Cambridge University Press (CUP), Cambridge, UK and New York, NY, USA, pp. 713–906 (2022) https://doi.org/10.1017/9781009325844.007

6

2

November 22, 2024 Jail:CAS Symposium 2024, Wiled 'Wissilier's Genetic Resources for Food Security in the Exe of Global Boding - Opportunities and Challenges for Conservation and Utilization	NARO	
Adapting food systems to a chang	ing climate	
-Key Messages from the IPCC Work	king Group 2	
NARO Institute for Agro-Environmental So	ciences	
Toshihiro Hasegawa	Ó	
National Agriculture and Envel Recearch Organi	ration	
National Agriculture and Pool Research organi	28001	

#### Outline

- Observed impacts of climate change (CC) on agricultural production
- 2. Projected impacts and associated risks
- 3. Adaptation action
  - · Potentials and limits to adaptation (quantitative studies)
- Research gaps
- 4. Maladaptation
- 5. Conclusion















3. Adapt	tation action per an action
Ongoing adaptation action	
Effective options: Cultiver improvements Agroforestry Farm and landscape diversification Community-based adaptation Strengthening biodiversity	
Wider benefits: • Food security and nutrition • Health and well-being • Livelihoods	













4. Maladaptation	ipcc 💩 🙈
tion limits, maladaptation and	financial constraints
Maladaptation Adaptation that results in unintended consequences. The most disadvantaged groups are not affetted. e.g. •.g. •.g. •.tago-scale and/or groundwaten dog-motest impation projects or programs car institute impatient uniter costs. •. Migration can increase the verticade of mase between when users.	Financial constraints • Current posel financial flows are multicent • discloses rather than electricity • Cessus reports can also down economy provid
	<ul> <li>4. Maladaptation</li> <li>tion limits, maladaptation and Maladaptation</li> <li>Maladaptation</li> <li>Adaptation that results in unintended consequences. The most disadvantaged groups are most affered.</li> <li>e.g.</li> <li>Large-scale and/or groundwater dependent registion projects or programs can indicae long-term available and increases the workload of mose left bedring (rink weeken).</li> <li>Migration can increase the workload of mose left bedring (rink weeken).</li> </ul>



# **Session 1**

## Potentials of Genetic Resource Diversity for Resilient and Nutritious Food Systems

## Chairperson: Miyuki Iiyama

Program Director/Information, JIRCAS



Potential of Quinoa for Food and Nutritious Security Under Climate Change in the Era of Global Boiling

## Yukari Nagatoshi

Project Leader, Biological Resources and Post-harvest Division, Japan International Research Center for Agricultural Sciences (JIRCAS), Japan



Dr. Yukari Nagatoshi is the Project Leader of the "Resilient crops: Development of resilient crops and production technologies" project at JIRCAS, assuming the role in 2024. She completed her doctoral program at Yokohama National University in 2009. Following her graduation, she began her career as a postdoctoral fellow at the National Institute of Advanced Industrial Science and Technology (AIST) in the same year. In 2013, she transitioned to a postdoctoral position at JIRCAS. The following year, in 2014, she secured a tenure-track researcher position at JIRCAS. Her career continued to progress, and in 2019, she was promoted to the role of senior researcher at JIRCAS.

# Abstracts

Climate change has entered a new phase, often referred to as the era of global boiling, even as we rethink the conventional crop production system that is extremely dependent on a few crops from a food and nutrition security point of view. For a resilient food system, it is necessary not only to improve current major crops, but also to create new major crop candidates. It is from this perspective that we focus on quinoa (*Chenopodium quinoa*).

Quinoa, an annual pseudocereal, was first domesticated at least 7,500 years ago in the Andean region of South America. Quinoa seeds are extremely nutritious, containing a good balance of the five macronutrients (carbohydrates, proteins, fats, minerals, and vitamins) and dietary fiber. In addition, quinoa can be grown at low and high latitudes, from lowlands such as coastal areas to highlands as high as 4,000 meters, and in areas with temperatures ranging from below freezing to as high as 40°C. With its high nutritional value and diverse traits that allow it to adapt to different agroecosystems, quinoa is a promising candidate for a major crop for the next generation.

Quinoa was the staple food of the indigenous peoples of the Andes before Columbus, but its production and consumption were historically banned by the Spanish conquistadors in the 16th century because it was revered as a sacred "mother grain" used in indigenous ceremonies. As a result, quinoa was neglected for almost 500 years until the latter half of the 20th century, and the development of varieties and cultivation techniques lagged far behind. To expand the cultivation of quinoa as a major crop candidate worldwide, we are conducting research and development to accelerate quinoa breeding through cutting-edge plant science research. First, we created a representative quinoa inbred line and sequenced its genome for efficient genome breeding<sup>[1]</sup>. We have since developed almost 200 genotyped quinoa inbred lines, covering almost all quinoa-growing areas in South America, and performed their Genotyped-by-Sequencing (GBS) and phenotypic analyses to clarify the overall relationship between genotypes and phenotypes for salt tolerance and key growth traits<sup>[2]</sup>. In addition, we have developed a technology to elucidate quinoa gene function using a viral vector method that allows the analysis of endogenous gene function in quinoa<sup>[3]</sup>. We have recently sequenced the genomes of quinoa at the chromosomal level and are currently providing the most accurate reference genome information in the world<sup>[4]</sup>. Based on these findings, we are developing breeding materials and elucidating quinoa's stress tolerance mechanisms through breeding populations and genomewide genotyping using next-generation sequencers<sup>[5]</sup>.

By recovering the lost 500 years of quinoa breeding in a short period of time through cutting-edge plant science research, we expect to contribute to the development of new crops that take full advantage of quinoa's diversity and potential. We hope that the genetic diversity of quinoa will contribute to future food and nutrition security as an important component of a robust food system under climate change in the era of global boiling.

- [1] Yasui Y. et. al., DNA Res., 23, 535-546 (2016).
- [2] Mizuno N. et. al., DNA Res., 27, dsaa022 (2020).
- [3] Ogata T. et. al., Front. Plant Sci., 12, 643499 (2021).
- [4] Kobayashi Y. et. al., Front. Plant Sci., 15, 1434388 (2024).
- [5] Kobayashi Y. & Fujita Y., Plant Biotech., in press (2024).

# Further Potential of Sago Palm and Sago Starch in Shaping the Future of the Asia-Pacific Region

## Hiroshi Ehara

Director, International Center for Research and Education in Agriculture, Nagoya University, Japan Professor, Graduate School of Bioagricultural Sciences, Nagoya University, Japan



Dr. Hiroshi Ehara is the Director of the International Center for Research and Education in Agriculture at Nagoya University. He studied as a visiting scientist in the Palm Room, Herbarium, at the Royal Botanic Gardens, Kew, under the Royal Society – Japan Society for the Promotion of Science (JSPS) fellowship from 1999 to 2000. From 2011 to 2015, he contributed to Mie University as the Vice President for International Affairs. In 2008, he received the Academic Award from the Japanese Society for Tropical Agriculture (JSTA) for his ecophysiological and phylogenetic studies on the sago palm. He was elected President of the Society of Sago Palm Studies in 2016 and Vice President of the JSTA in 2020.

## Abstracts

The sago palm (*Metroxylon sagu*), a starch-producing plant found across Southeast Asia and Melanesia that thrives in challenging environments, is not only a food source but is also gaining attention as a raw material for allergen-free foods, biofuels, and other industrial applications. Recently, the demand for sago palm has been increasing, driven by the new societal norms emerging after the COVID-19 pandemic and by Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). This growing demand for sago palm and sago starch is set against a backdrop of environmental degradation due to climate change, unexpected social issues, and an urgent need to bolster food security and the resilience of food systems. Another contributing factor is the increasing global desire to promote a healthy life.

*Metroxylon* palms, including the sago palm and related species, grow in swamps, as well as on alluvial and peat soils, where few other major crops can thrive without drainage and soil improvement. These palms are essential biological resources for promoting sustainable agriculture and rural development in tropical wetlands. The potential habitat range for *Metroxylon* palms is likely to expand over the next 45 years as a result of climate change<sup>[1]</sup>. *Metroxylon* palms, such as the sago palm, are considered underutilized, as they are mainly harvested from natural forests and semi-cultivated with minimal care. Given the social context of the past two decades, characterized by rising competition between biofuel and food production as well as diversifying food demands, there is increasing interest in the efficient utilization of carbohydrates from sago palm and related species, which could drive further land development and greater use of wetland areas. Against this background, the FAO Technical Cooperation Program, "Enhancing Food Security and Combating Climate Change through Scaling Up Sago Palm Production," was conducted in Papua New Guinea from 2022 to 2024<sup>[2]</sup>.

This presentation will showcase recent activities and initiatives based on interdisciplinary thinking and multidisciplinary approaches aimed at advancing the SDGs through collaboration between sago palmproducing countries and Japan, one of the world's largest consumers of sago starch. Highlights include developments in tolerance to various environmental stresses, such as submergence, salt stress, and acidic soils; innovative approaches to using beneficial microorganisms for sustainable plant nutrition management; and emerging trends in utilizing sago starch to promote health and well-being. The goal is to inspire consideration of the further potential of sago palm and sago starch in shaping the future of the Asia-Pacific region.

Itaya, A., M. Masamitsu, H. Ehara, H. Naito, I. Rounds, A. Naikatini and M. Tuiwawa. *Tropical Ecology* 63, 596-603 (2022).
 Toyoda, Y., H. Ehara, H. Naito, T. Mishima and K. Galgal. *Proceedings of the 14th International Sago Symposium*, The Society of Sago Palm Studies (Tokyo), 33-36 (2023).









Sago-Type Palms Were an Import Rice in Southern Subtropical Chir	ant Plant Food Prior to na
Xiaoyan Yang <sup>1</sup> *, Huw J. Barton <sup>2</sup> *, Zhiwei Wan <sup>1,3</sup> , Quan Li <sup>1</sup> , Zi Jun Wel <sup>4</sup> Institute of Scopplic Science and Yourd Institute Movies Audemy of Science 1,	hikun Ma <sup>1,3</sup> , Mingqi Li <sup>1</sup> , Dan Zhang <sup>1</sup> , Nijag-Oha 3 Schol of Johaning and Action Habry, Urbanity
Abstract Poor preservation of plans macroemains in the add solls of posthem sy- prehistoric delts in the region and of the spread of domesticated rice sous to econds in ancere thooks and archaeological discoveries from historics the stagle planet foods in the region before rice agricultare waively p the hypothesis. Here we present evidence from statch and physiolin - scatized/solls at the site of Xinous on the southern costs of China, den exploited sogo palms, barrans, freshwater noses and tablers, fem roots, as of statches and physiolitis from palms support that the sago type palms	Arropical China has hampered undestanding of havesits from the Yangtas River region. According f alles, it is presumed that roots and tubers uses actiond. But no direct evidences provided to text analyses of samples obtained during systematic orstaating that cuing 3,330-2470 alb hammans orns, Jobio teams as well as wild rice. A dominance were an important plant load prior to the rice in
south subtropical China. We also believe that because of their reliance transition towards labour intensive rice agriculture was a slow process.	on a wide range of stardh-wch plant foods, the
posth subtropical China. We also believe that because of shain relance transition towards labour intensive nice agriculture was a slow process. Citatient trap is, (parent), Van 2, U O, No. 2, et al. (2015 logi-type Pates taxe an impost OW 100 edited. deem 0.315 (parent).	on a wole range of stardh-wich plant loods, the
south subtropical Chaia. We also believe that because of their refance brasilion towards labour intensive rice agriculture was a slow process. Classes rule is been refamilied and a source of the source of the ONE Biol wall ref. det(0.3710 prime) agree 003144 Biblier Could Council, University of Transis, May	on a webe range of startbreach paint booot, the
south subtropical Onias. We also believe that because of their refance transition towards labour intensive nice agriculture was a slow process. Classifier target, destinate was 2, U 0, No 2, et al. (2018 Sign Type Films target and Refine Data Central, University of Transce, My Resident Oracine 73, 2012; Academ March 29, 2013; Published My A. 2013	of a work range of bottment paths today, the entremt. Room Suthern Sutherplat Data, Rud The sago-type pairns were
Journ Judkropicki Chika. Wa also believe that because of their relators branklish towards labour interview nice agriculture was a slow process. Content role, it devines to not 2, 0, 00, 2 et al. (2018) Sophtype Falles tave as topolar 008.002 et3145. doi:10.3373/parenidae=008.0188 #Blanc David Caranett, University of Transco. My Bencherd Normer 28, 2019. Acquired Mach 29, 2019. Published May & 2019 Cooperation 29, 2019. Acquire at This is an operators active destined under the same workshild and, additation, and generative active destined under the same	The sago-type pairns were an important plant food
I south subtropical Chrise. We also believe that because of their relations transition towards labour interview no agriculture was a slow process. Challen track the second strength of the second strength	The sage-type palms were an important plant food prior to the rice (around 5,000 years ago) in south
south subtropical Chrise. We also believe that because of their relations transition towards labour interview rice agriculture was a slow process. Classifier to a classification of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the State Charles of the state of the state of the state of the state of the State Charles of the state of the state of the state of the state of the State Charles of the state of the state of the state of the state of the State Charles of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of	The sage-type palms were an important plant food prior to the rice (around 5,000 years ago) in south subtronical china











The reasons for this increase in consumption are considered to be eating out and ramen/udon boom.



(Source: Agriculture & Livestock Industries Corporation https://www.alic.go.jp/joho-d/joho08\_000147.html)





### Hiroshi Ehara













#### Session 1












Here, we report the variation in morphological characteristics, pith dry-matter yield and potential starch yield of sago palm among the folk varieties with some local knowledge.













Discovery of Genes for Stress Resistance in Mungbean (Vigna radiata)

#### **Prakit Somta**

Associate Professor, Department of Agronomy, Faculty of Agriculture at Kamphaeng Saen, Kasetsart University, Nakhon Pathom, Thailand



Dr. Prakit Somta is an Associate Professor in the Department of Agronomy, Faculty of Agriculture, at Kasetsart University's Kamphaeng Saen Campus, Thailand. He received his Ph.D. in Agronomy from Kasetsart University in 2005. From 2009 to 2013, he worked as a senior lecturer at the Kamphaeng Saen Campus. He was appointed assistant professor in 2013 and associate professor in 2018. Since earning his Ph.D., he has been working on genetic resources and breeding of legume crops, especially mungbean.

Mungbean is a socio-economically important legume crop in Asia. It is generally grown in rotation with cereal crops such as rice, maize, and wheat. However, the average seed yield of mungbean is low, being only about 900 kg per hectare, due to biotic and abiotic stresses including bruchid (*Callosobruchus analis*, Callosobruchus chinensis and Callosobruchus maculatus) infestation, powdery mildew (PM) disease caused by Erysiphe polygoni, Cercospora leaf spot (CLS) disease caused by Cercospora canescens, vellow mosaic disease (YMD) caused by Mungbean Yellow Mosaic Virus (MYMV) and Mungbean Yellow Mosaic Indian Virus (MYMIV), calcareous soil (iron deficiency chlorosis), and soil salinity. These stresses are believed to be exacerbated by climate change, threatening food security. Marker-assisted breeding (MAB) and genomics-assisted breeding (GAB) are promising approaches to efficiently and rapidly develop new crop cultivars with improved yield, quality, and resistance to biotic and abiotic stresses. Although mungbean was among the first legume crops subjected to genomics studies three decades ago, progress in genomics research for this crop has been very slow due to a lack of genomic resources. Additionally, there are only a few laboratories/institutes that consistently and continuously work on genomics and molecular breeding of mungbean. However, in recent years, quantitative trait loci (QTL) controlling bruchid resistance, PM resistance, CLS resistance, YMD resistance, calcareous soil tolerance, and salt tolerance have been identified by high-resolution mapping and/or genome-wide association studies. In addition, candidate genes controlling these stresses have been identified: VrPGIP1 and VrPGIP2 encoding polygalactorunase inhibitors for bruchid resistance, VrMLO12 encoding Mildew Locus O 12 protein and VrRPP13L encoding Peronospora parasitica 13-like protein for PM resistance, VrTAF5 encoding TATAbinding-protein-associated factor 5 and VrRLP12 encoding receptor-like protein 12 for CLS resistance, VrYSL3 encoding yellow stripe-like3 protein for calcareous soil tolerance, and VrCYBDOMG1 encoding a cytochrome b561 domain-containing protein. Tightly linked and/or functional markers have been developed for these genes for MAB of mungbean and are being used in the development of stress-resistant mungbean cultivars.





Inheritance of	of stress resist	ance i	n mui	ngbean 🍈
Stress	Resistant germplasm	No. of loci	H: (%)	References
Powdery mildew	V4718 and RUM5	2-3	>80	Reddy (1994) Chankaew et al. (2013)
Cercospora leaf spot	V4718 and V2817	1-2	>80	Chankaew et al. (2011)
Bruchids	V2709, V2802, V1128 and V2817	1 ( <i>Br</i> )	>95	Somta et al. (2007) Chotechung et al. (2016)
Calcareous soil	NM10-12	1	>60	Srinives et al. (2010) Prathet et al. (2012)
Yellow mosaic virus	NM92 and BARI moong 1	1-2	>75	Malik et al. (1992) Alam et al. (2014)
Salinity	CPI 100834	1	45%	Deeroum et al. (2024)





























•	~	hereneesens 8 (Selv I)		Single nucleotide	polymorphisms	(SNP) identified between Chai Nat 60 (CN60)
A comparative genome map	Linkage group 6			and itoms in ru	First genes lou	acing in and nearby the qr mitomost region
illustrating location of	1134001 cm - 1		10 Mar	Gene	No. of SNPs	Types of SNPs
qPMRUM5-2 (left) and	112.000.00			EVM0031008	164	nonsynonymous SNP (102), synonymous SNP (46),
candidate genes for the	NUMBER OF STREET			(VrRPP13L-2)	0151	and splicing-relevant SNP (3)
qPMRUM5-2 on	A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL PROPERTY.	14.0-880-10.0.705 -073986800(1.1.4.86)		EVM0008427	220 and 5	nonsynonymous SNP (158) and synonymous SNP
chromosome 8 of the	NAME AND ADDRESS OF	- (2.304000-00-1,1-07,000) - (2.30440-00-0,1,200,000)		(VrRPP13L-3)	223 800 2	(71)
mungbean reference	NAMES OF CONTRACTOR	- Di Manandini (Linu/Pite		EVM0028537	51 and 8	nonsynonymous SNP (31), synonymous SNP (18)
genome (Sulv1) (right). The		The State State (1997) All State	tecognition of	(VrRPP13L-4)	UT della U	and stop-gain SNP (2)
candidate genes are bolded	******/	Peron	nospora parasitica	EVM0032804	77 and 1	nonsynonymous SNP (52), synonymous SNP (22),
and highlighted in blue and		-13-like	e protein (RPP13L)	(VrRPP13L-5)	CO DRIM (	and stop-gain SNP (3)
green.		are ca	andidate genes at	EVM0016936	35 and 2	nonsynonymous SNP (21), synonymous SNP (11),
		-crawerics.com/mil	qPMRUM5-2	(VrRPP13L-6)	ou diriu z	and stop-gain SNP (3)
	10.000 A	-driftmentation (c) (c), here		EVM0018688	25 and 10	consumation SND (16) and sumanimous SND (9)
Waengwan et al.	(2024) Plants	Test Dr. adulates, (L. Kr., estil) Test Dr. Billion di Intel Trati		(VrRPP13L-7)	20 000 10	nonaynonymous orer (roy and synonymous arer (s)
https://doi.org/10	0.3390/plants13091230	- NLO-884 (2000)			Waengwa	n et al. (2024) Plants. https://doi.org/10.3396/plants/13091230









		]
8955 94728	SLV.DFHLERFWGLQUFHGLICKYNELLQUHRQSTTIBELBEGRQF IW SLV.DFHLERFWGLQUFHGLICKYNELLQUHRQSTTIBELBEGRQF IW	TAF5 sequence
6753 94738	A00*551500EEAVTL5051004-W00HQHE1L408/ED5VEEH-DC46ALL5ETEV004 A00*551500EEAVTL5051004-W00HQHE1L408/ED5VEEH-DC46ALL5ETEV005 240	variations
8753 14738	EGREENHEESE CPS.IDVOXQUMSVKVVXXEFYSATGOMARPEATTISAAPKIKPEIPLP 100 EGREENHEETECHSIDVOXQUMSVKVXXEFYSATGOMARPEATTISAAPKIKPEIPLP 100	
x#51 9473.8	EVSTEVELSELED.RWVQL3VVA.PSWPYTEVWENGLSCSSSHORSLEVØPEDSS HV EVSTEVELSELED.RWVQLSSVA.PSWPYTEVWENGLSCSSISHOSLEVØPEDSS 140	
1951 14738	LIVMEHARLEDQSTARESQ66ADHSQ68QCT6Q456ANQVTLYQ6H56AVV4ATF5AA50 425 LIVMEHARLEDQSTARESQ66ADHSQ68QCT6Q456ANQVTLYQ6H56AV4ATF5AA50 425	Texture of a 1939 Three Yes Seent







	Number of	
Gene	SNPs and InDels	Types of mutations
VrRLP2-1	131	nonsynonymous SNP (83), synonymous SNP (35), stop-gain SNP (2) and frameshift mutation (3)
VrRLP2-2	145	nonsynonymous SNP (97), synonymous SNP (47) and non-frameshift mutation (1)
VrRLP2-3	118	nonsynonymous SNP (83), synonymous SNP (33) and stop-gain SNP (2)

































Lines PD:		AUDPC		DEAL	Deale	Halaba	1000000	0	Wald
	PDS	Bottom	Whole plants	(Deys)	(Days)	(cm)	(g)	pod	(k.g/rai)
KUWL2017A-12	7.00	101.53	61.92	41.67	69.00	38.57	7.46	11.75	253.56
KUML2017A-22	24.00	99,13	59.64	42.00	68.67	37.54	7.30	12,00	202,91
KUML2017A-40	22.00	104.67	62.90	41.67	60.00	39,13	7.78	12.17	235.28
KUML2017A-90	7.00	106 70	60.17	40,87	68.00	38.93	7.78	11.88	223,88
KUML2017A-104	10.02	81.65	55.61	42.33	69.00	38.21	7.92	11.75	226.30
KUML2017A-106	21.00	105.83	63.46	42.67	70.33	38.09	7.72	11.75	731.23
CN84-1 (RP)	81.68	131.69	79.77	43.00	69.33	36.48	7.58	11.93	181.62
V2709 (DP)	1.97	119,40	74,46	39.33	60.00	27.66	3.40	11.18	147.75
V4718 (DP)	13.68	17.20	12.29	39.67	68.00	31,33	3.26	12.21	241.27

#### Conclusions



- Most of biotic and abiotic stress resistance in mungbean is controlled by single major QTL
   VrPGIP1 and VrPGIP2, VrMLO12 and VrRPP13Ls, VrTAF5
- and *VrRLPs*, *VrYSL3*, and *VrOBE3L* are candidate genes for resistance to bruchid, powdery mildew, CLS, calcareous soil, and salinity, respectively, in mungbean







## **Session 2**

## Opportunities of Utilizing Genetic Resources to Build Resilient Food Systems

### Chairperson: Keiichi Hayashi

Program Director/ Environment, JIRCAS



IRRI's Strategies to Utilize Genetic Resources for Breeding Resilient Rice

#### Venuprasad Ramaiah

Research Unit Leader, International Rice Research Institute (IRRI), Philippines



Dr. Venuprasad Ramaiah is an Indian plant geneticist and rice breeder who heads the Fit-for-Future Genetic Resources cluster at the International Rice Research Institute (IRRI) in the Philippines. Since joining IRRI in 2018, he has overseen the International Rice Genebank, the world's largest rice genetic collection with over 132,000 accessions, leveraging rice biodiversity to develop climate-resilient varieties. Previously, Dr. Ramaiah served as Principal Scientist at the Africa Rice Center, where he released eight high-yielding, stress-tolerant rice varieties across West and Central Africa. His work supports sustainable agriculture and addresses climate challenges through improved rice varieties for global food security.

Plant genetic resources are essential for food security and environmental sustainability, and genebanks play a crucial role in their conservation. However, genebanks worldwide are often underutilized; for example, only 5% of the 132,000 rice samples conserved at IRRI's International Rice Genebank (IRG) have been actively used in breeding programs. Addressing climate change challenges requires accelerating the effective use of genebank resources. While genebanks primarily focus on conserving genetic diversity, they also play a vital role in enhancing germplasm utilization by generating critical trait information. Traditional germplasm evaluation, however, relies on manually assessing limited traits, which is time-intensive and costly.

This presentation will outline IRRI's strategic approaches to harness genetic resources for breeding resilient rice, focusing on three key areas:

- 1. Unlocking Novel Variation: The IRG collection includes unique, yet-to-be-utilized traits. Efforts to identify and leverage these traits for breeding novel rice varieties will be discussed.
- 2. Exploiting Genotype by Environment (GxE) Interactions: Our recent work in Southeast Asia highlights the value of exotic genetic resources. We will cover strategies to rapidly deploy genetic variation that leverages GxE interactions, boosting breeding outcomes.
- 3. Applying AI/ML in Genebanking: Artificial intelligence (AI) and machine learning (ML) are transforming genebank operations. This section will discuss the progress of AI-driven genebank practices, including curation, characterization, and subset selection. At IRG, we are integrating AI-driven systems with high-throughput phenotyping to streamline the screening of rice samples for climate-resilient traits. As a pilot study, we showcase the application to screen for tolerance to flood, drought, and salinity stresses. In 2024 alone, about half of IRG's collection was screened for these traits.

# IRRI's Strategies to Utilize Genetic Resources for Breeding Resilient Rice



#### Oldest 1977

.

International Rice Genebank

- Largest >132,000 accessions ~5k wild species
- Most diverse 134 countries 22 wild sp, 7 genera

(Juncent Nortexet &) 'OneRice' Breeding Strategy & Framework faster creation Brogram products Product RGA and Setter LST OYT **NARES** partners Testing & +[ Elite lines Product ' National Testing System New varieties released Seed Product L **On-farm Trials** d system t manage Promising varieties 6¢ 135'00 itioning recommendations & Life Cycle Management IR



Traits of interest
Spikelet number, panicle length and number, biomass
• Fe, Zn, GI, protein, antioxidants
Drought (seedling, reproductive), heat, flooding (AG, submergence, stagnant flooding)
Blast, sheath blight, false smut, BLB, tungro, RYMV     BPH, AfRGM
• Methane emission, ratoon ability, NUE, photosynthesis
INR 50! ****

















## Screen for new donors Ø 12 17 R time

IRRI <u>60!</u> 🎬

#### Screening a large collection is too slow, tedious and costly

AI/ML in Genebank

- Throughput was quite limited in earlier approaches.
- Al-based approach is expected to be faster and more cost-effective than the conventional approach.
- Al-assisted approach, almost the entire collection could be screened in a short









## Flood tolerance screeningsummary

1977 – 2023 ~20k IRG accessions have been screened for submergence

DS2024 – we screened 60k accessions – selected 1207 tolerant accessions

Time: 1/10<sup>th</sup> Cost: 1/16<sup>th</sup>

#### IRR 60! 🎬















Session 2

Diving into Genetic Diversity in Wild Wheats: A Case Study on *Aegilops tauschii* Coss.

#### Yoshihiro Matsuoka

Professor, Graduate School of Agricultural Science, Kobe University, Japan



Dr. Yoshihiro Matsuoka is a Professor at the Graduate School of Agricultural Science at Kobe University, Japan. Dr. Matsuoka uses wheat and its relatives as a model system to study the mechanisms for polyploid species formation. His current research interests include understanding how wild wheat populations are structured, investigating the adaptive mechanisms in wild wheats, exploring the genetic and ecological nature of the origins of common wheat, and finding ways to better utilize wheat genetic resources in breeding. To address questions related to these interests, he conducts cross-experiments and applies evolutionary and quantitative genetic analyses.

Climate change may have a significant impact on wheat production, which around one-third of the world's population relies on for subsistence. Wild wheats provide valuable genetic resources to help develop improved varieties that can adapt to harsh environments. *Aegilops tauschii* Coss. (formerly known as *Aegilops squarrosa* L.) is a wild diploid species native to the central part of Eurasia, from the Middle East and Caucasus to southwest and central Asia and central China. As the D genome progenitor of bread wheat, it serves as a valuable source of the "left-in-the-wild" alleles that can be used in breeding. Such alleles may have the potential to express useful phenotypes when transferred to bread wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L. subsp. *aestivum*). Within its vast geographic range, *Ae. tauschii* populations adapt to diverse local environments and exhibit high degrees of phenotypic variability. Understanding the species' natural trait variation patterns provides the basis for studies on the genetic mechanisms that underlie adaptation and, ultimately, is essential for enhancing the agronomic utilization of the species.

*Ae. tauschii* comprises two major lineages (TauL1 and TauL2) and one smaller (TauL3) lineage, which are defined by the similarity of accessions in nuclear and chloroplast molecular marker genotypes. Each lineage may correspond to an intraspecific group of accessions sharing a common ancestor that existed at some point in the past. These lineages differ in their patterns of geographic distribution: TauL1 exhibits a wide distribution across the species' range, whereas TauL2 is restricted to the western part of the range. TauL3 has been found in Georgia.

We examined the natural variation patterns in relation to these lineages for agronomic traits, including salt tolerance during gemination and seedling growth, crossability with durum wheat, using a set of approximately 200 accessions (130 accessions for TauL1, 65 for TauL2, and five for TauL3) representing the entire species' range. Our findings include: (1) relative to TauL1, TauL2 and TauL3 showed sensitivity to salt at the germination and seedling stages, (2) some TauL2 accessions from the southern Caspian region showed a high potential for hybridization with durum wheat in terms of anther size and crossability. Overall, we conclude that the lineages provide a useful viewpoint to explore the natural variation patterns in agronomic traits in *Ae. tauschii*.

To facilitate the search for *Ae. tauschii* genes responsible for the expression of agronomic trait phenotypes, we assembled an enlarged set of non-redundant accessions (> 500 accessions). A population structure analysis revealed a small number of previously unknown TauL3 accessions from Azerbaijan and northern Iran.

A downside of the lineages is that they are difficult to distinguish based on morphology; we need to genotype an *Ae. tauschii* accession to determine which lineage it belongs to. To address this issue, we adopted a machine learning approach, feeding thousands of spike photos into the model to enable it to classify the images according to the lineages used as labels. I will briefly report on the progress made with the approach.

#### Diving into genetic diversity in wild wheats: a case study on *Aegilops tauschii* Coss.

#### Yoshihiro Matsuoka

Kobe University























#### Conclusion

The lineages are useful in exploring the Ae. tauschii germplasm.

TauL1 is an important genetic resource for improving bread wheat



#### Acknowledgements

Takumi Shigeo (Kobe University)

Yoshihiro Koyama (Kobe University)

Daisuke Saisho (Okayama University)

Taihachi Kawahara (Kyoto University)

35PS KAKENHE Gran

Caldinet Office, Government of Japan, Hoomshot Research and Development Program for Agriculture, Forestry and Fisharise (Inding agency Bio-oriented Technology Research Advecement Tertification') grant no. 201909227 Joint Research Program of Arid Land Research Center, Tottori University Session 2

Advancement of Tropical Crop Genetic Resources Utilization through the Development of Database, Technologies and Research Networking

#### Shinsuke Yamanaka

Director & Project Leader, Tropical Agriculture Research Front (TARF), Japan International Research Center for Agricultural Sciences (JIRCAS), Japan



Dr. Shinsuke Yamanaka is the Director of Tropical Agriculture Research Front (TARF) and the Project Leader of the "Tropical crop genetic resources: Advancement of tropical crop genetic resources utilization through the development of database, technologies, and research networking" project at JIRCAS. He graduated from the Department of Applied Physics, Faculty of Science and Engineering, Waseda University. He changed research fields and graduated from the United Graduate School of Agricultural Science, Gifu University with a Ph.D. After working as a postdoctoral fellow at the University of Tsukuba and the National Institute of Agrobiological Sciences (NIAS) Genebank, he joined JIRCAS-TARF as a senior researcher in 2008. His area of expertise is plant genetic resources, an area he has been studying continuously since graduate school. He is currently conducting research on the diversity and utilization of tropical crop genetic resources, including tropical fruits.

JIRCAS maintains diverse genetic resources of sugarcane, indica rice, tropical fruit trees, and *Urochloa* (tropical grass) at the Tropical Agriculture Research Front (TARF) in Ishigaki Island, Okinawa Prefecture. These tropical crops play an important role as sources of food, energy (biofuel), calories, nutrients, cash crops, and fodder in production areas. Amid concerns about global climate change, the sustainable and stable production of these crops is an urgent issue. The introduction of tropical crops and their cultivation and dissemination technologies is expected to be one of the measures to combat global warming in Japan, and will contribute to the expansion of production areas and diversification of food and nutrient sources.

TARF has climatic and geographical conditions similar to those of the experimental fields used in JIRCAS's overseas research. The research environment is suitable for conducting detailed basic experiments, along with demonstration research in tropical crop growing environments, which can contribute to close cooperative partnerships with developing regions and to agriculture in the Southwest (Nansei) Islands of Japan.

The ongoing JIRCAS project "Advancement of tropical crop genetic resources utilization through the development of database, technologies and research networking" (Tropical crop genetic resources project) based at TARF aims to create a shared resource of information, technology, and materials, and contribute to the promotion of sustainable production under unstable environmental conditions, as well as their production and utilization in Japan. This will be achieved through research networking on tropical crop genetic resources to address issues with overseas and domestic organizations, as well as through the development of varieties and technologies that take advantage of this diversity.

In this project, we have developed strategic genetic resource information<sup>[1-2]</sup>, breeding technologies<sup>[3]</sup>, varieties and materials, and cultivation and dissemination technologies<sup>[4]</sup>, taking advantage of the diverse and abundant genetic resources maintained at TARF and the geographical location of the facility, based on international and domestic issues and needs that must be addressed. Through the sharing of information, materials, and technologies, we aim to strengthen collaborations with domestic and overseas research institutions for the advancement of tropical crop genetic resource utilization.

[1] JIRCAS Mango Genetic Resources Site: https://www.jircas.go.jp/en/database/mango/mango-top
[2] JIRCAS-*Erianthus* Database: https://www.jircas.go.jp/en/database/erianthus
[3] JIRCAS Research Highlights (2023): https://www.jircas.go.jp/en/publication/research\_results/2023\_c02
[4] JIRCAS Research Highlights (2021): https://www.jircas.go.jp/en/publication/research\_results/2021\_c02














































# **Panel Discussion**

### Panel Chair: Yasunari Fujita

Program Director/Food, JIRCAS

Speakers:

Sarada Krishnan

Director of Programs, Global Crop Diversity Trust, Bonn, Germany

#### Toshihiro Hasegawa

Executive Scientist, Institute for Agro-Environmental Sciences, National Agriculture and Food Research Organization (NARO), Japan

#### Yukari Nagatoshi

Project Leader, Biological Resources and Post-harvest Division, Japan International Research Center for Agricultural Sciences (JIRCAS), Japan

#### Hiroshi Ehara

Director, International Center for Research and Education in Agriculture, Nagoya University, Japan Professor, Graduate School of Bioagricultural Sciences, Nagoya University, Japan

#### Prakit Somta

Associate Professor, Department of Agronomy, Faculty of Agriculture at Kamphaeng Saen, Kasetsart University, Nakhon Pathom, Thailand

#### Venuprasad Ramaiah

Research Unit Leader, International Rice Research Institute (IRRI), Philippines

#### Yoshihiro Matsuoka

Professor, Graduate School of Agricultural Science, Kobe University, Japan

#### Shinsuke Yamanaka

Director & Project Leader, Tropical Agriculture Research Front (TARF), Japan International Research Center for Agricultural Sciences (JIRCAS), Japan



















#### Panel Discussion (35 min- 16:50-17:25)

Panel Session Theme: Resilient Genetic Resources for Food Security in the Era of Global Boiling – Opportunities and Challenges for Conservation and Utilization

FUJITA Yasunari: I am Yasunari Fujita, Program Director of JIRCAS' Food Program. We are currently facing intertwined crises of biodiversity loss, environmental degradation, and malnutrition. Our food systems depend on genetic resources, and their conservation and use require urgent action.

There is a boost to the scientific debate to promote resilient crops, and the technology for their use is rapidly evolving, and the momentum needed to accelerate that opportunity.

First, we will discuss how to unlock the potential of resilient non-major crops.

Dr. Krishnan, in your keynote speech, you shared a historical perspective and future prospects for the conservation and use of genetic resources. Can you tell us more specifically global discourses on the opportunities to unlock non-major crop genetic resources in the age of global boiling?

Sarada Krishnan: Thank you for the question. You know, in my talk I did talk about an initiative, a global initiative called the VACS initiative, which stands for Vision for Adapted Crops and Soils. And this initiative is through the US Department of State and headed by Dr. Cary Fowler, who was the 2024 World Food Prize Laureate. So, for the VACS initiative, the objective is to improve nutrition, food security, and resilience to climate change through the development and cultivation of climate-resilient and demanddriven crops, while also prioritizing soil conservation as the foundation of soil health. So, the VACS through the US government, they have an implementer's group, the Crop Trust along with the CGIAR led by CIMYTT. The IFAD and FAO are the main implementing partners. So last year we got funding through the VACS initiative from the Norwegian government to develop programs for opportunity crops in Africa. So, we're calling that program a BOLDER, which is under a BOLD project, which BOLDER stands for "Building Opportunities for Lesser known Diversity and Edible Resources. So, we are currently working in four African countries which are Benin, Ghana, Uganda and Tanzania. And the way we do I showed the four pillars. So, we look at conserving and utilizing crop diversity research, evaluation, breeding, seed systems development as well as policy-enabling environment. So, we have all these four countries. We have selected 2 crops each based on stakeholder consultation. So, we work with farmers of seed suppliers and all of the different stakeholders, bringing them together to identify these crops because we need buying from everyone to improve the crop. And so that is one of the projects. And recently we got funding from the German government as well as Irish government, and we have developed a funding facility called the Power of Diversity funding facility. So next year we'll initiate the Power of Diversity pilot project and the five additional countries and three in Africa which are Rwanda, Nigeria and Zambia and then one in Asia which it will be India and then in Latin America and Colombia. So, we will use almost the same process, and we will start working on all of these five-year projects because to see impact you need a little bit of time to make sure that seed systems are developed. All of these things are in place. So that is our project that we are currently working on. Thank you.

FUJITA Yasunari: Thank you, Dr. Krishnan. Dr. Nagatoshi, from a resilience and nutrition point of view, quinoa is a very interesting crop. How do you think the lessons from quinoa will contribute to advancing research of resilient crops?

NAGATOSHI Yukari: Thank you for asking the important point. As already mentioned by Dr. Sarada, using unutilized crops, I say orphan crops, are very important for future food and nutritious security. In this

point, I think the progress of our quinoa research including establishment of the breeding platform and also finding the involved in useful agronomical trait will provide a road map for utilization for the other orphan crops, I hope so. In addition, for major crop, I think new findings from quinoa or the other orphan crops are useful for their improvement as presented in this symposium, maize and rice, major crop research is at the forefront of the plant science. But I strongly believe that we will find new mechanism or new genes involved in high nutritious content or stress tolerance from quinoa. So, I expect these findings to give a new hint for major crop improvement. Thank you.

**FUJITA Yasunari:** Thank you, Dr. Nagatoshi. Prof. Ehara, sago can be grown in poor environments, but can you talk about the innovation and policy challenges and opportunities needed to unlock its potential?

EHARA Hiroshi: Thank you, Dr. Fujita. About the very important questions, first, I'd like to talk about the innovation. Recently the NGO and supporting/partner organization in Indonesia, they would like to expand the opportunity to utilize the sago palm. One of the new challenges is to plant the sago palm at the post mining site. So, for the deep devegetation, because of the post mining of the area, we'd have a serious problem in the soil. Such kind of opportunities expanded to say utilization will be expanding. However, when we increase the opportunity to utilize sago palm, of course, sago starch production will be increased, but at the same time, the amount of the residue also will be increased. Actually, at this moment, almost half of the stored carbohydrate starch in the trunk will remain after such extraction in the residue. So, how we can utilize such remaining resource will be one of the very important agenda. For finding the better solution, we are working with our former international students. For example, to produce the biodegradable material, the seeds, like the styrofoam-like material. However, to expand the opportunity to utilize the residue, probably much easier access devices should be prepared. So, another example is for producing the organic fertilizer utilizing the sago, the residue. So our partner in the Sulawesi island, they're trying to utilize such organic fertilizer for the post mining of the area. So, this will be one of the recent challenges. So, then it's about the policy. So, we expected the new challenge from the producing country. We introduced the one example from Indonesia, so the government of Indonesia started to support the development of the infrastructure for the sago starch, sago-producing area. Because the center of the sago production area will be very far from the large city, it will be difficult to provide the material for the consumers. That's why they started to select several provinces to support, to develop their infrastructure. Yesterday I heard a news from the Philippines, our partner organization in the Philippines, they got the new budget to utilize sago resource, to be one of the components for their ecology services just like the Satoyama activities. Such kind of new trial from the support, the local and central government, will be already launched so we'd like to support their activity together with our partner organizations.

FUJITA Yasunari: Prof. Ehara, thank you for your good news. Next, Dr. Somta, despite its socioeconomic importance, mungbean has a low yield and is susceptible to biotic and abiotic stresses. You talked about technological advances in overcoming stress tolerance. What conditions can accelerate and enable the development of more resilient varieties?

**Prakit Somta**: OK, thank you for the question. I think the availability and the easy accessibility to the diverse genetic resource will be the key to rapid development of the climate resilience cultivars. And also, for example, in my case that I showed in my presentation, we screened a lot of the germplasm for the salt tolerance, thousands of germplasms. But finally, we got one from one mungbean, only one accession that shows the resistance and now we are using it for the development of the new cultivar with salt tolerance. And also, for the minor crops such as the mungbean. The wide availability of the reference genome and the genomic tools are really important to push forward the new cultivar development.

FUJITA Yasunari: OK. Thank you, Dr. Somta. So, in conclusion, thank you for such interesting topics. As

policies such as the Vision for Adapted Crops and Soils or VACS initiative attempt to unlock the secrets of quinoa's high nutritional value and stress tolerance and use them to create a resilient crop, along with the innovation of policies related to the sago palm. Also, the issue of the gap between traditional breeders and plant biotechnologists.

And we move to the next, on harnessing resilience in major crops. To ensure food security, it is essential to ensure the resilience of staple crops, the opportunities and trade-offs for the use of genetic resource diversity, the development of the latest technologies, and the need for international initiatives.

So next, I would like to ask the panelists about the opportunities and challenges of harnessing resilience in major crops.

Dr. Hasegawa, you talked about the IPCC's viewpoint on the significance of genetic resources in adapting to climate change. Can you tell us about the urgency of adapting research for major crops like wheat and rice to ensure food security under the scenarios of climate change and global population growth?

HASEGAWA Toshihiro: Thank you, Fujita-san for the question. The urgency of adaptation, adapting to climate change is actually immense as its impacts from floods, heat, the outbreaks of the pest and diseases are already threatening global food security. So, mitigating these negative impacts from biotic and abiotic stresses is a primary adaptation measure with these genetic improvements serving as a critical component, but enhancing this stress tolerance is a key, but it's increasingly difficult. The hurdle is going up and up as the intensity and frequency of these extreme events are rising with every degree of warming. We must acknowledge that we are approaching, unfortunately, the adaptation limits for the maintaining yields and the rising environment pressures, so this is alarming. So, we need to make really strong efforts to mitigate the climate change at the same time.

For staple crops like wheat and rice, there's another really serious concern, that is, the yield potentials. The yield potentials are unfortunately showing some signs of plateauing, particularly rice and wheat. It is a contrast to some other major crops like maize and soybean that show us almost consistent growth. And that's also alarming, so we need to highlight urgent efforts to boost the yield potentials at the same time. And to do that, we also do the ordinary research breeding program, but at the source, at the same time, we need some program that even leverages some of the positive side of climate change. For instance, rising temperature, also rising CO2, so those are the issues that can be leveraged in some way to enhance yield potential. But at the same time, I also would like to mention something about the minor crops or underresearched crops, they are as important as major crops as they provide important source of nutrients. And they are really underresearched, diversifying cropping system not just for major crops, another key issues to be resilient against climate change. So, I think I'll just reiterate what the speakers said, the importance of these minor crops. But finally, that said, the genetic improvements alone are not sufficient to address all the full spectrum of challenges posed by climate change. And we need a comprehensive approach, one that integrates advanced breeding with better resource management and sustainable farming practices in resilient infrastructure. By taking these coordinated and urgent action, we can build a more resilient agricultural system capable of securing the food supply for a growing population in an increase in volatile climate. Thank you.

FUJITA Yasunari: Thank you, Dr. Hasegawa. You mentioned the importance of a comprehensive approach and to building a more resilient agriculture system, that is a very important thing, thank you. Prof. Matsuoka, wheat has been domesticated for a long time. Modern species have lost the potential for resilience that wild species possess. What do you think about that possibility, or how would you balance the loss of desirable traits of modern species?

MATSUOKA Yoshihiro: OK. Thank you for the question. And then my simple answer is that the possibility of wheat germplasm is priceless, basically limitless because in the genus Triticum and Aegilops, there are about 30 species and each species is a reservoir of alleles that may not exist in bread wheat. And then if we can transfer these alleles to bread wheat, they should provide some new novel phenotypes in bread wheat. Each of these species has the potential. We have at least 30 species. So, this is the reason why I think the wheat germplasm is priceless and countless, are limitless. And then I would like to add that we need to do more pre-breeding in order to achieve our goals to save our next generation from hunger. Thank you.

FUJITA Yasunari: Thank you, Prof. Matsuoka, and thank you for telling me the importance of the wild wheat in wheat improvement. So, Dr. Ramaiah, rice is cultivated in a wide range of growing areas, thus the development of new varieties needs to meet the challenges of each local environment. Your presentation highlighted the potential of using technologies such as AI to optimize GxE. In turn, what strategies do you think are necessary to make more use of Genebank?

Venuprasad Ramaiah: Thank you for the question. There are two among the several strategies I presented, which are AI application in the gene bank era and how we can better exploit GxE to utilize gene and genetic resource tools. These are two separate topics. Going forward, maybe AI can come in to even help us with optimizing those GxE, but right now we are not there yet. Among other strategies that are relevant for us as an international center is you have to remember we are not the only institute doing this type of work, so there are plenty of other researchers who are actually doing similar work in the national program, so we can enhance their program by enhancing the access of the genetic resources to these. So, at IRRI, every year we send out 25 to 30,000 samples globally, and there are lot of other users that we have to also tackle to understand their needs to come up with strategy how to better serve them, that is one of our strategies. To attend this, what we do is every few years, mostly five years, we conduct a user survey and try to understand -- What is the trend? What are the users looking for? So, our recent survey was just around the pandemic time and then one interesting thing which came out was going forward, the users want wild species in more, they are more interested in that before to address climate change. This is the message that we got. And one of the other recommendations was that from a gene bank perspective, wild species are difficult to manage and there is very less amount of seed production, so we give very less in our center. We give only 50 seeds, many times the partners want more. So, since the wild species is going to become much more important going forward, we said, okay, let us tackle this strategy. So, we now have a revamped regeneration system for the wild species at IRRI so that now we can produce more seeds. And then we are able to attend to their needs. So, this is one of the strategies that we are following. Also, to make the genetic resources much more amenable, we have to make sure that the system in which we provide this material is smooth. Currently there are some bottlenecks. We are much better, but still there is lot of bottlenecks to solve. It is not as easy, sometimes their request takes months before the seed is provided and available to the researcher. So, there are few steps we can address that.

Then also, I think this was pointed out by others, the current information system, database systems that genebanks handle somehow are not so user friendly unfortunately and I myself, I'm a user, and I have this complaint myself. So, what are the ways in which we can make the information easily accessible? So here again AI can come in and then there are now we are developing what is called as chat bots where the users can just communicate with the system and they get the required information and so that it becomes faster, easily available. Right now, we have to run pillar to post to access certain information and then see what I want. So, these are some of the additional strategies in addition to what I mentioned in my talk, which could further help to make the genetic resources more useful and available to the users.

FUJITA Yasunari: Dr. Ramaiah, thank you for the important comment and about promoting the gene bank

by improving the user demand and user friendliness. And thank you for providing us with very interesting topics on the importance of a comprehensive approach to building a more resilient agricultural system, the importance of wild wheat in wheat improvement, and on promoting the use of gene banks by improving the end user demand and user friendliness.

Dr. Yamanaka, in your presentation, taking advantage of its subtropical environment, JIRCAS has been conducting research on the conservation and utilization of tropical genetic resources through international joint research over the past 50 years. What are some of the best lessons for the future of international collaboration of genetic resources?

YAMANAKA Shinsuke: Thank you very much for your comment and question, Dr. Fujita. So, during these fifty years, of course, I don't know about 50 years ago, but we have many experiences and learned so much from our research activities. The first point to be mentioned regarding the handling of genetic resources in international collaborative research is that international attitudes toward genetic resources have changed drastically in the last 20-30 years. As you know, the CBD, The Convention on Biological Diversity, adopted at the Rio Summit in 1992, reconfirmed the sovereign rights of the country of origin and regulated compliance with national laws and regulations. In addition, in 2010, the Nagoya Protocol was established under the CBD which establishes laws and regulations concerning opportunities for the access to genetic resources and the fair and equal benefit-sharing, ABS arising from their utilization. Besides the CBD and the ABS, the ITPGR-FA, International Treaty on Plant Genetic Resources for Food and Agriculture was also adapted at FAO. And these three treaties have been signed and are in effect even in Japan. As long as JIRCAS is conducting research activities on genetic resources with international collaboration, it is a law that must be complied with, and those who handle genetic resources are required to take the utmost care in their handling of genetic resources. We also take sufficient preparation and prior coordination into account when introducing and providing genetic resources. At the moment, some developing countries have not vet developed domestic laws that correspond to these international treaties, but we think that more careful procedures will be required in the future, as they will no doubt be strictly applied in all countries. Considering the current situation, it is not easy to introduce genetic resources from overseas to Japan in the future, and the genetic resources that have been already introduced in the past and are currently in our possession will become extremely valuable.

FUJITA Yasunari: Dr. Yamanaka, thank you for the important comment increasing the usefulness of currently held genetic resources and through the entry into force of the Nagoya Protocol. We don't have enough time. Is there anyone who has any questions about the presentations or panel discussion at this symposium? Only one question. So, is there any?

#### Questioner:

To all the speakers, thank you very much for wonderful talks. I'm very inspired to all the sessions you gave. My question is really to everyone, now this is about research as usual, but when do we shift this to crisis management? I'm from the Norin Chukin Research Institute, which is agricultural and forestry central bank's research institution, which means I am in the position to advise the Japanese farmers what we should be doing and from the talk today, I think the climate change is really serious and it's going to be even more serious because the fossil subsidies is over \$1 trillion and it's not going to decrease and all majors are not going to give up their rights and also the oil-producing countries are not going to give up their lives too. And the United States has elected Donald Trump to be the next president and that he's going to face the big, big climate change very soon. And I think we need to be prepared. I mean, the farmers need to be prepared to change their seeds, their farming styles, the insect management and so, when and how are we going to advise is my question. Thank you.

FUJITA Yasunari: Thank you for your question. We don't have enough time but please answer Dr. Hasegawa.

HASEGAWA Toshihiro: I think the first thing is that we shouldn't give up. Curbing the climate change, well, that's one thing. The other thing is that the involvement of farmers' participation from the early step of this development of innovative technology is another issue. So, I think sharing information about how and what the impacts are that we are currently seeing? What is the technology that we can develop? And should be shared from the beginning with the farmers and in that way, the adoption of the technology can be much quicker. So hopefully we can provide more, better platforms to do to enhance this activity. Thank you. Very short answer.

FUJITA Yasunari: Do you have any comments from the panelists please?

Sarada Krishnan: Maybe I think we need to go into emergency situation now. I think we shouldn't be waiting because breeding takes such a long time, especially in, I mean, I work on coffee genetic resources. A coffee breeding program can take 25 to 30 years. So, we need to think about 2050 and beyond now. And we have all those predictions that we are doing. And looking at those predictions, if that is what is predicted, we need to start breeding now for 2050.

Venuprasad Ramaiah: Just to supplement to what Sarada mentioned, if you remember my slide about my last work in Vietnam. This is one strategy where best adapted material is provided to the hands of the user today. It's not about a promise of breeding a better line tomorrow, so that is one way in which genebanks can contribute to some of the crisis management scenario wherever possible.

FUJITA Yasunari: Thank you. So, anyone has any question and comment? OK, thank you. Dr. Krishnan and Dr. Hasegawa, can you give us your final message on how the international community can promote genetic resource research to ensure food security in the era of global boiling? Dr. Krishnan, please?

Sarada Krishnan: Sure. So, genebanks around the world are the guardians of crop diversity and many genebanks are underfunded, which impacts the operations of the genebanks. So, if you go nationally, a lot of national genebanks are very under resourced and underfunded. And so that impacts the quality of the material that they're conserving in the genebanks. So, we need to ensure that genebanks are very well funded as well as well managed to make sure that they are meeting international standards. And that will ensure the diversity, the crop diversity is protected not just for our current generation, but for future generations.

HASEGAWA Toshihiro: Thank you. I will just reiterate what Yamanaka-san said. This international community is really important and respecting the safeguarding rights of local communities is really immensely important. Also, ensuring equitable access to those materials that are really important and in breeding really has to be accelerated, At the same time also it is critically important that effectiveness of these innovation must be evaluated across multiple dimensions. And so, economic, environmental, institutional and physical dimensions will be also important. So, I think the breeders and also the other scientists must collaborate very closely internationally to make this evaluation very effective. And also, we first bear in mind that these target environments are unfortunately changing, so the breeding targets will be changing all the time. So, I think we have to look ahead like Dr. Krishnan said, 30-40 years from now. So those are the target environments, so at the same time, we have to make 10 years efforts to curb the climate change. OK, I really conclude the sentence again. Don't give up trying to fight this climate change. Thank you

FUJITA Yasunari: Thank you, Dr. Krishnan and Dr. Hasegawa. And it's time. Thank you, all panelists, for this interactive and insightful discussion on today's topic and the straightforward answers. We will retain the international research collaboration, and multidisciplinary approaches are important to build resilient food systems in the era of global boiling. Especially, we need to conserve and restore the diversity of nutritiously rich genetic resources and harness their inherent resilience to biotic and abiotic stresses. There are still a lot of challenges, but we will continue working hard to address them. Thank you to all of you who attended on-site and online, and we hope to see you again on future occasions. Finally, please give a round of applause to all the panelists.



# **Closing Remarks**

## YANAGIHARA Seiji

Vice-President, JIRCAS



Distinguished guests, all the participants here and online, good afternoon. I'm Seiji Yanagihara, vice president of JIRCAS. As we conclude this year's symposium, I would like to take a moment to offer some closing remarks on behalf of the organizers.

First, I would like to deeply thank Dr. Sarada Krishnan and Dr. Toshihiro Hasegawa for your insightful keynote speeches today. And to express my gratitude to all the session speakers for your valuable contributions to this symposium. I would also like to thank everyone else for your active participation in this symposium. A little short in time for more questions or comments. I'm sorry about that.

The JIRCAS International Symposium is held every year with the aim of providing a forum for participants from national agricultural research institutes, universities, and international agricultural research organizations in developing regions to discuss and exchange ideas on the challenges facing agriculture, forestry, and fisheries in developing regions, as well as their sustainable development.

This year, as the global average temperature reaches an all-time high, we focused on research related to resilient genetic resources under the "global boiling" era. For over 50 years, JIRCAS has been working with partners to develop crops that can be sustainably cultivated even in poor agricultural environments in tropical and subtropical regions. However, dealing with "global boiling" is a new challenge. Thus, it is important to conserve and utilize genetic resource diversity for both genetic resources that have not been used until now and those that have already evolved in research and development. As discussed in today's lectures and panel sessions, I believe that the conservation and utilization of genetic resources in building resilient food systems is an area where international joint research is indispensable. I hope this symposium has provided an opportunity to explore further strategies for the conservation and utilization of genetic resources.

In closing, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries and the National Agriculture and Food Research Organization (NARO) for their support of the JIRCAS International Symposium. I would also like to express my appreciation to everyone involved in the planning and execution of this event.

Thank you very much.